
 

              AGENDA 
ASTORIA DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION  

October 3, 2016 
Immediately Follows Council Meeting 

2nd Floor Council Chambers 
1095 Duane Street  Astoria OR  97103 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. REPORTS OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
4. CHANGES TO AGENDA  
 
5. CONSENT CALENDAR 

The items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be adopted by one 
motion unless a member of the Astoria Development Commission requests to have any item 
considered separately.  Members of the community may have an item removed if they 
contact the City Manager by 5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting. 
(a) ADC Minutes of 9/6/16 

 
6. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 

All agenda items are open for public comment following deliberation by the ADC.  Rather 
than asking for public comment after each agenda item, the Mayor asks that audience 
members raise their hands if they want to speak to the item and they will be recognized.  In 
order to respect everyone’s time, comments will be limited to 3 minutes. 
(a) First Amendment to the Astor West Urban Renewal Plan – Expand Boundary and Add 

Projects (Community Development) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS MEETING IS ACCESSIBLE TO THE DISABLED.  AN INTERPRETER FOR THE 
HEARING IMPAIRED MAY BE REQUESTED UNDER THE TERMS OF ORS 192.630  

BY CONTACTING JULIE YUILL, CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE, 503-325-5824. 
 



 
 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
  Founded 1811 ● Incorporated 1856 

 
 

 
 
September 29, 2016 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: ASTORIA DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION (ADC) MEETING OF OCTOBER 3, 

2016 
 
Item 5(a): ADC Minutes 
 

The minutes of the ADC meeting of September 6, 2016 are enclosed for your 
review.  Unless there are any corrections, it is recommended that the ADC 
approve these minutes. 

 
Item 6(a): First Amendment to the Astor West Urban Renewal Plan – Expand 

Boundary and Add Projects (Community Development) 
 

The City of Astoria adopted an urban renewal plan (the “Plan”) in December 
2002, (Ordinance #02-18).  The Plan contains projects which were and are 
intended to assist in stimulating growth in the Urban Renewal Area (the “Area”).  
As a result of a landslide in 2007, Bond Street has been closed to two way 
traffic.  In addition, water and sewer lines have been rerouted above the street. 
The Public Works Department commissioned a geotechnical analysis 
completed in August 2015 to study the feasibility of adding a retaining wall.  The 
results of the study concluded that this is feasible.  Based on the results, the 
Public Works Department prepared an “order of magnitude” cost estimate of 
$395,000 to construct a retaining wall, repair Bond Street for two way traffic, 
and include low cost traffic calming measures to mitigate potential speeding 
along a narrow street in a dense neighborhood of residential buildings.  In 
addition to the street aspect, there are underinvested residential properties that 
potentially need assistance (i.e., grants/ loans/technical assistance) to renovate 
and preserve as affordable housing, which is another FY 15-16 Council Goal.  
Staff has met with the Community Action Team about a targeted pilot program 
that would offer some form of assistance to qualified property owners to 
renovate multi-family buildings while still meeting Development Code design 
requirements.   
 



Page 2 of 2 

The Area does not currently include the land necessary to assist in funding the 
Bond Street improvements or adjacent properties that could be improved for 
affordable housing.  The proposed amendment to the Plan would expand the 
Area to include this right-of-way and tax lots shown in Figure 1 and permit the 
use of tax increment financing for the Bond Street reconstruction project, as 
well as for affordable housing development and a Storefront Improvement 
Program.  The proposed amendment is attached as Exhibit A.  The Report on 
the Amendment is shown in Exhibit B.  It is recommended that the Astoria 
Development Commission forward the proposed Plan Amendment to the 
Planning Commission for their review of conformance to the Astoria 
Comprehensive Plan and to City Council for hearing and first reading.  

 



  

Page 1 of 3 Astoria Development Commission Journal of Proceedings 
 September 6, 2016 

ASTORIA DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION    ADC JOURNAL OF PROCEEDINGS 
City Council Chambers 
September 6, 2016 
 
A regular meeting of the Astoria Development Commission was held at the above place at the hour of 7:44 pm. 
 
Commissioners Present:  Price, Herzig, Warr, Nemlowill, Mayor LaMear 
 
Commissioners Excused: None 
 
Staff Present: City Manager Estes, Community Development Director Cronin, Parks and Recreation Director 
Cosby, Finance Director Brooks, Fire Chief Ames, Police Chief Johnston, and Public Works Director Cook. The 
meeting is recorded and will be transcribed by ABC Transcription Services, Inc.   
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONERS: No reports. 
 
CHANGES TO AGENDA: No changes. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  
 
The following items were presented on the Consent Calendar: 
 

5(a) ADC Minutes of 8/1/16 
5(b) ADC Minutes of 8/15/16 

 
Commission Action: Motion by Commissioner Warr, seconded by Commissioner Nemlowill, to approve the 
Consent Calendar. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Commissioners Warr, Nemlowill, Herzig and Price, and 
Mayor LaMear. Nays: None. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 
 

Item 6(a): Astor West Urban Renewal District – Storefront Improvement Program Startup and 
Launch (Community Development) 

 
The Astoria Development Commission (ADC) has been considering a Storefront Improvement Program for the 
Astor West Urban Renewal Area (URA) since 2013. Façade improvements are a popular and widely used tool by 
urban renewal agencies and Main Street programs to assist property/business owners with exterior 
improvements to buildings. The purpose of the program is to revitalize designated commercial districts and 
corridors such as West Marine Drive in Uniontown, which has many inventoried historic commercial buildings. 
 
Staff presented draft program guidelines on May 2, 2016 to the ADC. Based on these comments, staff produced 
a polished set of program guidelines that serve as parameters for the administration of the program. In order to 
launch the program, the ADC needs to review and authorize the program. The program would be administered 
as a grant/loan depending on the amount that is requested. For the first $10,000, it would be a 50/50 matching 
grant administered by City staff. If the amount is $10,000-$50,000, it would require ADC review and approval and 
the leverage ratio would increase to a 75/25 match grant. If the amount exceeds $50,000, than it would require 
ADC approval and be underwritten as a loan through Craft3. 
 
Once the program is ready to launch and ADC approves the program, staff is prepared to conduct outreach to 
Uniontown businesses. The requested planned expenditure is $250,000 per fiscal year. The total budget for 
capital improvements in the Astor West URA is $2 million for Fiscal Year 2016-17. The planned expenditures 
can be reviewed and adjusted each budget cycle based on the actual demand for the program. Assuming a 
grant amount averages $10,000-$25,000, there could be 10-25 projects in different stages. It is recommended 
that the Commission approve the program guidelines, design guidelines, and program documents to implement 
the new Storefront Improvement Program for the Astor West Urban Renewal Area. 
 
Director Cronin gave a presentation on the proposed program, which he believed would be well received and 
result in immediate improvements in Uniontown. He reviewed Staff’s recommended program guidelines, design 
guidelines, program documents, and policy considerations. 
 



  

Page 2 of 3 Astoria Development Commission Journal of Proceedings 
 September 6, 2016 

Commissioner Nemlowill said Redmond’s community development director believed the success of their 
Storefront Improvement Program was due to funds only being available for a short time. She asked if Director 
Cronin had considered this approach. She also wanted to know if the City could ensure the program was utilized. 
Director Cronin said a certain amount of budgeted funds are available for this program and only so many funds 
will be available each year. People are encouraged to go after the funds that are available. The ADC and City 
Council set the budgets for each year. City Manager Estes added that Staff has proposed $250,000 for this fiscal 
year to encourage large projects in the first year of the program. The City can market the program for this first 
year, but Council will have to decide how much is budgeted for future years. People might not have their share of 
the funds to do a project now, but if they are aware of the program, projects can be approved in March or April. 
 
Commissioner Nemlowill believed education and outreach would be important for the program to be successful. 
She asked if the Community Development Department had the ability to promote the program. Director Cronin 
said if the ADC authorizes the program at this meeting, Staff will begin an outreach program sending direct mail 
to the property and business owners. He and Planner Ferber will go door-to-door to inform people about the 
program and build relationships with business owners. Staff will also contact the Uniontown Association, 
Chamber of Commerce, and other partner organizations. He believed the City would receive quite a few 
applications once the program begins. 
 
Mayor LaMear asked why this program included apartments but not single-family homes. Director Cronin 
explained that there were only a few single-family homes within current boundaries of the Urban Renewal 
District. If the district is expanded to include Bond Street, some more single-family homes would be included. 
City Council can add single-family homes to the program, but most Storefront Improvement Programs do not 
include single-family homes. The City will be working with other organizations to help improve housing along 
Bond Street. He believed most of the homes along West Marine Drive were multi-family units. 
 
Commissioner Herzig believed Community Action Team in Saint Helens had funds for homeowners to do 
rehabilitation work. He also believed there were some single-family homes on the south side of West Marine 
Drive facing Young’s Bay. Some of the houses are in very poor condition and the owners do not have the money 
to repair them. He was concerned about offering funds on a first come first served basis. He preferred that Staff 
prioritize early submissions instead of tying its hands with a strict chronological order. Someone may present a 
beautiful proposal late in the submission period, but funds would not be available because the City had to serve 
people as they came through the door. He wanted Staff to give itself more leeway to choose the best projects. 
He added no matter how well the program is advertised, someone will say they did not know anything about it. 
 
City Manager Estes noted that any project above $10,000 will be presented to the ADC for review. 
 
Commissioner Price asked if engaging in this project would move other projects to a lower priority. Director 
Cronin said at that point, he did not believe so. City Council is still trying to get a few questions answered about 
Heritage Square and the Library. However, the Heritage Square/Library discussion is currently on hold, which 
frees up Staff time to work on the Storefront Improvement Program. There would be capacity issues if his 
department began working on all of the projects in his portfolio at the same time. But he believed the City should 
take advantage of this opportunity now. 
 
Commissioner Price asked if Staff could share how the Community Development Department has prioritized 
projects. City Manager Estes requested the Commission provide direction on how to prioritize projects so that he 
can ensure those projects are assigned. If there are workflow concerns, he would let the Commission know. The 
Library project will transition over to the new library director. A lot of work is currently being done on the potential 
expansion of the Astor West Urban Renewal District and the Storefront Improvement Program. The City always 
has urban renewal projects coming and Staff is aware that time must be budgeted for the day-to-day work. 
Community Development Department has the capacity now to get the word out about the Storefront 
Improvement Program. Director Cronin added that he would rather be on offense than defense. He can do the 
outreach needed for the Storefront Improvement Program and regulate the number of applications that Staff 
receives. 
 
Commissioner Price said she wanted to discuss this further another time. She wanted to make a list of the 
projects she believed Staff was working on and decide whether those projects aligned with her and her 
constituents’ priorities. Programs like this one always have early adopters and she wanted to know if Staff 
planned to wait until everyone had been advised before accepting applications. Director Cronin explained that he 
planned to create a level playing field for property and business owners. A letter will be sent out to everyone at 
the same time. Those who receive the letter will be encouraged to contact him if they have questions about the 



  

Page 3 of 3 Astoria Development Commission Journal of Proceedings 
 September 6, 2016 

program. The letters many not result in Staff receiving applications right away, so it is difficult to estimate how 
many applications the letters will generate. He will also go door-to-door with the goal of visiting each property or 
business owner within one week. 
 
Commissioner Nemlowill did not believe formalizing access to urban renewal funds would change the ability of 
any entity to request the funds. If the City received requests beyond the budgeted amount, the Development 
Commission could consider the request. This is the first time Astoria has had a formal program with guidelines, 
which could spur some good investments in that part of town. The intent of the urban renewal district is to cure 
urban blight while other taxing districts suffer as the investment area is improved. When the urban renewal 
district sunsets, all of the taxing districts will prosper because the area will have benefited. It would be wonderful 
if the guidelines and the outreach spur new investment. City Manager Estes added that historically, Astoria’s 
urban renewal districts have focused on some piecemeal projects and larger catalyst projects meant to spur 
more reinvestment in the area, like the Liberty Theatre, Astor Hotel, and Fort George. This program does not 
preclude those catalytic projects and the Development Commission will continue to consider game-changing 
projects. The Storefront Improvement Program simply makes it easier for citizens to understand how they could 
receive financial benefits as an incentive to improve their visual impact to the area. Director Cronin said in his 
experience, this program is a conversation starter about what redevelopment, urban renewal, and investment 
can do for the business and property owners. An owner might initially work on their storefront, and then realize 
there is more they can do. The City wants people to get excited about the revitalization in Uniontown. 
 
Commissioner Nemlowill confirmed that the design guidelines in the area were developed to implement the 
Riverfront Vision Plan. City Manager Estes reminded that this program was a City Council goal several years 
ago. The program was put on hold until the Riverfront Vision Plan was complete in that area to ensure that the 
design guidelines would complement what was adopted by City Council. 
 
Commissioner Herzig said he emailed City Manager Estes and City Attorney Henningsgaard earlier about the 
Development Commission’s lack of a non-discrimination policy. He proposed that the Commission adopt the 
City’s non-discrimination policy. City Manager Estes explained that the draft documents include a covenant that 
would be recorded if someone received a grant. Commissioner Herzig’s email was asking about the language in 
the covenant. The Commission could add to the covenant, which would be noted and considered as part of the 
grant application process. However, the Development Commission has not officially ratified the same language, 
which could be done through a separate motion. 
 
Commission Action: Motion by Commissioner Price, seconded by Commissioner Nemlowill, that the Astoria 
Development Commission approve the program guidelines, design guidelines, and program documents to 
implement the new Storefront Improvement Program for the Astor West Urban Renewal Area, with the addition 
of the non-discrimination clause in the covenant. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Commissioners Warr, 
Nemlowill, Herzig and Price, and Mayor LaMear. Nays: None. 
 
Commission Action: Motion by Commissioner Herzig, seconded by Commissioner Price, that the Astoria 
Development Commission adopt the City of Astoria’s non-discrimination policy and include the policy to grants, 
awards, contracts, and covenants. Motion carried 4 to 0 to 1. Ayes: Commissioners Warr, Herzig and Price, and 
Mayor LaMear. Nays: None. Abstentions: Commissioner Nemlowill 
 
Commissioner Nemlowill said she abstained because she did not know enough about how the City doing 
business with a private entity would be impacted by the non-discrimination policy.  
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:12 pm.  
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 
Secretary City Manager  
 
 



 
 
September 28, 2016 
 
TO:  ASTORIA DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 

FROM:  BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE ASTOR-WEST URBAN RENEWAL PLAN – 

EXPAND BOUNDARY AND ADD PROJECTS 
 
BACKGROUND 

 
The City of Astoria adopted an urban renewal plan (the “Plan”) in December 2002, 
(Ordinance #02-18).  The Plan contains projects which were and are intended to assist 
in stimulating growth in the Urban Renewal Area (the “Area”).   
 
As a result of a landslide in 2007, Bond Street has been closed to two way traffic. Only 
one westbound lane of traffic is allowed limiting east west traffic to Marine Drive. In 
addition, water and sewer lines have been rerouted above the street. The Public Works 
Department commissioned a geotechnical analysis completed in August 2015 to study 
the feasibility of adding a retaining wall. The results of the study concluded that is 
indeed feasible. Based on the results, the Public Works Department prepared an “order 
of magnitude” cost estimate of $395,000 to construct a retaining wall, repair Bond 
Street for two way traffic, and include low cost traffic calming measures to mitigate 
potential speeding along a narrow street in a dense neighborhood of residential 
buildings. In addition to the street aspect, there are underinvested residential properties 
that potentially need assistance (i.e., grants/ loans/technical assistance) to renovate 
and preserve as affordable housing, which is another FY 15-16 Council Goal. Staff has 
met with the Community Action Team about a targeted pilot program that would offer 
some form of assistance to qualified property owners to renovate multi-family buildings 
while still meeting Development Code design requirements.  
The Area does not currently include the land necessary to construct the Bond Street 
improvements nor adjacent properties that could be improved for affordable housing. 
The proposed amendment to the Plan would expand the Area to include this right of 
way and tax lots shown in Figure 1 and permit the use of tax increment financing for the 
Bond Street reconstruction project as well as for affordable housing development, and a 
Storefront Improvement Program. The proposed amendment is attached as Exhibit A. 
The Report on the Amendment is shown in Exhibit B.  

 CITY OF ASTORIA 
Founded 1811 ● Incorporated 1856 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  
 



Figure 1 – Proposed Amendment Area 

 



PROCESS 
 
The Plan stipulates that an amendment which increases the size of the Urban Renewal 
Area by more than one percent of the existing area is a substantial amendment, which, 
under State law, must be adopted in the same manner as the original Plan.  This 
includes: 

• Review and forwarding on to formal review by the Astoria Development 
Commission. (on October 3, prior to City Council meeting on November 7.) 

• Review and recommendation by the Planning Commission.  (Planning 
Commission review is scheduled for October 25 with a recommendation of 
approval.) 

• Open House scheduled for October 25, prior to the Planning Commission 
meeting. 

• Notice to all citizens of Astoria of a hearing before the City Council.  (Notice was 
provided by mailing to utility customers in the City of Astoria in August 2016.) 

•  Forwarding a copy of the proposed Amendment and the report on the 
Amendment (the “Report”) to the governing body of each taxing district. Staff 
provided an advanced courtesy notice on September 21. (The formal taxing 
districts letters will be sent out on October 4.) 

• Clatsop County briefing on October 26. 
• Hearing by City Council and adoption of the proposed Amendment by a non-

emergency ordinance. The Hearing by City Council is scheduled for November 7 
with a second reading scheduled for November 21. The ordinance must be a 
non-emergency ordinance, which means that the ordinance does not take effect 
until 30 days after its approval and during that period of time may be referred to 
Astoria voters if a sufficient number of signatures are obtained on a referral 
petition. 
 

IMPACTS TO TAXING DISTRICTS 
 
There is no proposed increase to the maximum indebtedness in the Area. Because 
of this, there are no overall added impacts to taxing districts other than the small 
positive impact in the final year of tax collections that shows additional funds to be 
returned to the taxing districts. 
The impacts on an annual basis are due to the property being added into the Area. The 
new property will be added in to the Area at the value established in October 2016 by 
the county assessor. The taxing districts will continue receiving taxes off of that 
assessed value. The urban renewal agency will receive taxes off any future increase in 
value of these properties. Absent urban renewal assistance that increased value will be 
a nominal amount. With potential urban renewal assistance, there may be 
re/development that could increase the values in the Area. The taxing districts would 
not have received this increase in taxes but for the assistance provided with urban 
renewal.  
The assessed value of the added properties will be added to the urban renewal area in 
FYE 2018.  The urban renewal area is projected to meet its maximum indebtedness in 
FYE 2021. The impact of the foregone taxes to the taxing districts off the growth in 
assessed value is shown in the attached Report on Table 14. 



The amendment has a very small negative impact to taxing district permanent rate 
collections for a few years, and then a small positive impact in the last year (as the 
accelerated tax increment revenues, result in the urban renewal area needing to collect 
less tax increment revenues in the final year to reach the maximum indebtedness and 
close down).  The net result is positive, but negligible (a few hundred dollars total) as 
reported in nominal dollars. 
The Astoria School District #1 and the Northwest Regional Education Service District 
are not directly affected by the tax increment financing, but the amounts of their taxes 
divided for the urban renewal plan are shown in the charts. Under current school 
funding law, property tax revenues are combined with State School Fund revenues to 
achieve per-student funding targets. Under this system, property taxes that are 
foregone because of the use of Tax Increment Financing are replaced (as determined 
by a funding formula at the State level) with State School Fund revenues.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Astoria Development Commission forward the proposed 
Plan Amendment to the Planning Commission for their review of conformance to the 
Astoria Comprehensive Plan and to City Council for hearing and first reading.  
 

 By:    
 Kevin A. Cronin 
 Community Development Director 
     
 
 
Attachments: 
 
Exhibit A: Astor-West Plan First Amendment  
Exhibit B: Astor-west Report on Plan First Amendment  


















































































	ADC Agenda 10-3-16
	ADC Memo 10-3-16
	5(a) ADC Minutes 9-6-16
	6(a) ADC First Amendment to AWURD  Plan

